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SUPRE."ME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK 
COUNTY OF NEW YORK 
QUANISHA SMITH and ANTHONY COLA VECCHIO, 
individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated, 

Plaintiffs, 

- against -

KR1ST1Nfyf. PROUD, as Commissioner of the New York 
State Office of Temporary and Disability Assjstance, and 
ROBERT DOAR, as Commissioner of the New York City 
Hwnan Resources Administration, 

Defendants. 

STIPULATION 
AND ORDER 

OFSETTLE:MENT 

Index No. 400903/201 0 

WHEREAS, prior to December 61 2010, the New York City Human Resources 

Administration ("NYC HR.A1
' or ~'City Defc;ndant") .implemented and employed a certain NYC 

Local f'onn Equivalent Notice of Conciliation1 as pan of its Conciliation/Sanction process in 

circumstances where the Public Assistance R~ipient allegedly failed or refused to comply or 

cooperate with Public Assistance Employment Require~ents; and 

WHEREAS, for all periods relevant hereto, the New York State Office of Temporary 

and Disability Assistance ("OIDA" or "State Defendanf1
) and NYC HR.A employed a 

standardized form notice to inform Public Assistance Recipients that they or a member of their 

household was going to have their Benofit.s reduced (i.e., be ''sanctioned") as a result of an 

alleged failure to comply with Employment Requirements; and 

WHEREAS, plaintiffQuanisha Smith (11Plaintiff_Smith") commenced this 

proceeding/action (the "Action") pursuant to Article 78 and Section 3001 of the New York Civil 

Practice Law & Rules ("CPLR") on or about April 6, 2010, against Elizabeth Berlin, as then 

1 Unless otherwise defined, the capitalized terms used herein are defined in Section 1 below. 
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' , 

Executive Deputy Commissioner ofOIDA, Robert Doar, as then Commissioner of NYC !-IRA, 

and BQNY Properties, LLC ("BQNY Properties"); and 

WHEREAS, State Defendant submitted a Verified Answer dated April 23, 2010; and 

WHEREAS, City Defendant cross-moved to dismiss the Verified Petition on June 4, 

2010,and 

WHEREAS, Plaintiff Smith filed a Verified Reply to State Defendant's Verified Answer 

dated May 21, 2010~ and 

WHEREAS, Plaintiff Smith and plaintiff Lakeisha Seabrook ("Plaintiff'Seabrook") filed 

motions to intervene and to amend th~ Petition/Complaint on July 8, 2010; and 

WHEREAS, Plaintiff Seabrook subsequently became gainfully employed and ca.me off 

of PA, and her claims were ultimately withdrawn on July 161 2010; and 
' . 

WHEREAS, State Defendant cross-moved to dismiss the Petition/Complaint on July 14, 

2010; and 

WHEREAS, Plaintiff Anthony Colavecchio (''Plaintiff Colavecchio") thereafter moved 

to intervene, and thereupon Plaintiff Smith and Plaintiff Colavecchio (together, 1'Nruned 

Plaintiffs") moved for leave to file a Second Am~nded Verified Class Action Petition/Complaint 

and for class certification on or about October 25, 20 l 0; and 

WHEREAS, effective December 6, 2010, NYC HR.A implemented a revised Local Fonn 

Equivalent Notice of Conciliation; and 

WllEREAS, BQNY Properties was dismissed as a defendant by stipulation executed 

November 6 and 8, 2013; and 
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WHEREAS, by Decision and Order dated July 22, 2013 (the "July 22, 2013 Order"); the 

Court granted Named Plaintiffs' motions for intervention, amendment of the pleadings, and class 

certification, and denied State and City Defendants' cross-motions to dismiss; and 

WHEREAS, by Notice of Appeal dated September 16, 2013, the City Defendant 

appealed the July 22, 2013 Order to the Appellate Division, First Department, which appeal is 

still pending; and 

WHEREAS1 Named Plaintiffs filed a Second Amended Verified Class Action Complaint 

dated August 16, 2013 (the "Second Amended Complaint''); and 

WHEREAS, City Defendant filed an Answer to ~e Second Amended Complaint dated 

October 11, 2013; and 

'WHEREAS, State Defendant moved to dismiss the Second Amended Complaint and, in 

the aJtemative, moved to amend the class defirtition; and 

WHEREAS, by Decision and Order dated April 13, 2015 (the "April 13, 2015 Order"), 

the Court grantedt in part, St.ate Defendant's motion to amend the class definition and denied 

State Defendant's motion to dismiss the Second Amended Complaint; and 

WHEREAS, by Notice of Appeal dated July 9, 2015, the City Defendant appealed the 

April 13, 2015 Order to the Appellate Division, First Department, which appc:;al is still pending; 

and 

WHEREAS, by Notfoe of Appeal dated December 31 2015, the State Defendant appealed 

the April 13, 2015 Order to the Appellate Division, First Department, which appeal is still 

pending; and 

WHEREAS, on or about June 20l5, Samuel Roberts became Commissioner _ofOTDA, 

and in his official capacity is automatically substiti.Ited as the State Defendant: and 

3 
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", 

WHEREAS, on February 28, 2014, Steven Banks was appointed as Commissioner of 

NYC HRA, and in his official capacity is a.utomaticaJJy substituted as the City Defendant; and 

WHEREAS, on December 18, 2015, the Social Services Law was amended by adding 

Sections 341 ~a and 342-a. thereto, which sections modify the procedures by which employment• 

related Sanctions may be imposed on Public Assistance Recipients in cities with a. population 

over one million, and consequently require modifications of the predicate Notice of Conciliation 

for Public Assistance Recipients resid1ng in New York City; and 

WHEREAS, the parties have engaged in extensive formal and infonnal disclosure, and 

have had extensive discussions and negotiations leading the parties to settle all claims raised in 

this Action; and arc entering into this Stipulation of Settlement (the "Stipulation,.) solely for ·the 

purpose of settling the disputes between them and so as to avoid further litigation, and without 

Defendants admitting any fault or liability, and to settle this Action on terms and conditions just 

and fair to all the parties; 

NOW, TmREFORE,-IT IS HEREBY STIPULATE)) AND AGREED, by and 

among the undersigned counsel, that this Action is settled, subject to the approval of the Court 

pursuant to CPLR Rule 908, as follows: 

SECTION I: DEFINITIONS 

1. "Benefits" means cash assistance received through either the Family Assistance 

Program or the Safety Net Assistance Program by Public Assistance Recipients residing in New 

York City. 

2. "City Defendant'' o.r "NYC HRA,, means the New York City Human Resources 

Administration. 

4 
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3. "Class" for purposes of this Stipulation, has the following definition, as set forth 

in the Court's Decision and Order entered on April 28, 2015 and as modified herein: 

All past, current, and future recipients of public assistance or food stamps 
(Supplemental Nutrition Assistance [Program]) m New York City since 
Jtlly 8, 2007, who have- received City [D)efendant's Conciliation 
Notification or Notice of Decision (Notice of Intent to Sanction) between 
July 8,.2007 and December 221 2015, and whos'e public as~istance or food 
stamps have been reduced or discontinued . for violation of a work 
requirement. 

4. "Class Member" means a person who is a member of the Class. 

5. "Closed C~e Sweep Date" means the dates on which City Defendant shall review 

its computer records and detennine which Class Members, whose cases were closed as of the 

Open Case Determination Date, a.re subsequently determined to be eligible to receive Recroactive 

Relief pursuant to Paragraph 27 of this Stipulatfort. 

6. "Conciliation" refers to the opportunity afforded to PA Recipients residing in 

New York State pursuant to .Social Servk.es Law§ 341) who are alleged to have failed or refused 

to cooperate or comply with an Employment Requirement, to resolve the reasons for such 

alleged failure or refusal so as to avoid a pro-rata reduction in Benefits for such period of time as 

set forth in Social Services Law § 342. 

7. "Effective Da.teH refers to the date on which this Stipulation shall become final 

and unappealable. The Stipulation shall be "final and unappealable'': (i) ifno notice of appeal is 

timely filec;l, on the thirty-first day after the order or judgment approving the Stipulation has been 

served on or by counsel for all parties with written notice of entry; or (ii) if a notice of appeal is 

timely filed, on the first day on which the order or judgment approving the Sett]ement is not 

subject to further judicial rev kw of appeal, either by reason of affirmllnce by a court of last 

rr::sort orb)' reason oflapse of time, provided that the Stipulation or order or judgment approving 

the Stipulation is not reversed or modified upon such j1.1dicial review or appr::aJ. 
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8. "Employment Requirements" means mandatory requirements under So~ial 

Services Law§§ 331 through 336 and 18 N.Y.C.R.R. § 385.2(a) that adult PA Recipients in New 

York State seek and maintain employment in order to continue receiving PA Benefits. 

9. "Family Assistance Program" means New York State's Public Assistance 

program pursuant to Soc1at Services Law §§ 343-360. 

10. "Local form Equivalent Notice of Conciliation" (also ''Notice of Conciliation" or 

'
1Conciliation Notice") refers to the Notice of Conciliation, implemented by the City Defendant 

and approved by the State Defendant. that was used to apprise PA Recipients residing in New 

York City who alkgedly failed to c.omply or cooperate with Employment Requirements of the 

opportunity to resolve the reasons for such alleged failure or refusal so as to avoid a pro-rata 

reduction in Benefits.for such period of time 0.s set forth in Social Services Law § 342 by 

explaining the reason(s) for their alleged infraction with a Conciliation Worker. 

11. "Open Case" means a case in which, as of the Open Case Detern1jnatiqn Date, 

PA Benefits a.re being received by the Class Member. 

12. "Open Case Determination Date" means the date (which in no case shall be more 

than ten (10) business days prior to the Open Case Payment Date) on which Defendants will 

conduct a review of their computer records to determine which Class Members are to be issued 

Retroactive Relief pursuant to Paragraph 25 herein bocause they have Open Cases. 

13. ~'Open Case Payment Date" means the date to be set by Defend.ants, no later than 

thirty (30) days after the Effective Date, at which time Defendants will issue Retroactive Relief 

to all Class Members who are eligible therefor pursuant to Paragraph 25 of this Stipulation. 

14. "Public Assistance" (also "PA") refers to the Family Assistance Program and 

Safety Net Assistance Program. 
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15. "Public Assistance Recipient'1 (also "PA Recipient") means an individual who 

has been determined eligible and has received or is receiving cash assistance Benefits through 

the Family Assistance Program or Safety Net Assistance Program whHe residing in New York 

City. 

16. "Remedied" as used in Paragraphs 24-32 herein means deletion or withdrawal of 

the relevant Sanction from the Class Member's Client Infraction History in WMS, and/or 

issuance to the Class Member of Retroactive Relief if required by the terms of this stipulation. 

17, "Retroactive Relief' means the restored PA Benefits relief specified in Sections 

III and IV ofthls Stipulation. 

18. 0 Safety Net Assistance Program" means New York State's PA program pursuant 

to Social Services Law§§ 157-165. 

19, "Sanction" means a penalty that re.suits in a pro-rata reduction or discontinuance 

of Benefits for a certain period of time as set forth in Social Services Law§§ 342(2)(b)-(c) and 

342(3)(a)-(c), as those sections existed prior to December 18, 2015, as a result of a detennination 

by NYC HRA that a PA Recipient failed to comply with Employment Requirements .. 

20. "Sanction Notice" (also known as "Notice Of Decision" or 1'Notice Oflntent") 

means a notice sent by Defendants to a Public Assistance Recipient's household i.n New York 

City notifying such household of the imposition of a Sanction on a Class Member's Public 

Assistance case. 

21. "Standardized Monthly Lost Benefits" means the agreed-upon approximation of 

the monthly reduction of Benefits to a Class Member as a result of a Sanction imposed for failing 

or refusing to cooperate or comply with an Employment Requirement as set forth in the below . 

table, dependent upon the particular Local Form Equivalent Notice of Conciliation received 
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(defined by 11Tier" as set forth in Section IV below); whether or not the Class Member attended a 

Conciliation (again, defined by "Tier" as set fonh in Section IV below), and the Class Member,s 

PA household size at the time that such Sanction. was imposed. 

PA Hous~,bold Ticc. l Tur.2 Thu TuLi ' 
Size 
I $117.00 $93.75 $41.25 $33,75 
2•5 $63.75 $51. 75 $33,75 $26.25 
6-8 $48.75 $39.00 $26.25 $18,75 
9 and over $43.50 $33.00 $18.75 $11.25 

22. "State Defendant' or "OTDA" means the New York State Office of Temporary 

and Disability Assistance. 

SECTION Il: MODIFICA TIO,N_OF CLASS DEFINITION 

23. The Court's Order of April 28, 2015 in this Action is modified so as to amend the 

dtfinition of the CJass, as follows: 

All past, current, and future recipic:nts of Public Assistance: or food stamps 
(Supplement.al Nutrition Assistance [.l?rogram]) in New York City since 
July 8, 2007, who have received City [D]efondant1s Conciliation 
Notification or Notice of Decision (Notice of lntent to Sanction) between 
July 8, 2007 and December 22, 2015, and whose Public Assistance or food 
stamps have been reduced or discontinued for violation of an Employment 
Requirement. 

SECTION ID: RELIEF TO TID: Cl;:,AS,_S 

24. Within thirty (30) days of the Effective Date, Defendants shall correct the Client 

Infraction History for all Class Members by amending the appropriate data in State Defendant's 

Welfare Management System ("WMS") to reduce each Class Mtmber's cumulative Sanction 

count by the m.unber of Sanctions imposed from July 8, 2007 to December 22, 2015, Within 

thirty (30) days after making such corrections, Defendants shall provide Class Counsel wjth a 

report including the name, Client Identification Number, and sanction c.ode for each Sanction 

deleted from Class Members' Client Infraction History in WMS. 
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25. For each Class Member who has an Open Case: 

a. Within thirty (30) days of the Effective Date, Defendants shall authorize 

Retroactive Relief pursuant to the methodology set forth in Section IV, by 

issuing the appropriate amount to the Electronic Benefits Transfer ("EBT") 

card of the payee of the Class Member's l'A case at the time of the relevant 

Sanction if such case is active on the Open Case Detennination Date; 

otherwise, to the payee of the Class Member's new PA case. 

b. Within ten ( l 0) business days prior to o:r follmying the Defendants authorizing 

Retroactive Relief pursuant to Paragraph 25(a), above:, Oefendants·shall issue 

a written notice to the payee of the Cla.9s Member's PA case at the time of the 

relevant Sanction if such case is active on the Open Case Dc:tcnnination Date; 

otherwise, to the payee of the Class Member's PA case as of the Open Case 

Detennination Date. A sample of such a notice is attached as Exhibit A 

hereto. 

26, Within fourteen (14) days of authorizing Retroactive Relief pursuant to Paragraph 

25(a), above, Defendants shall provide Class Counsel t1 report, in writing, that sets forth any 

Retroactive Relief authorized on behalf of e. Class Member pursuant to Section IV herein, 

including the name, address, Client Identification Number, sanction code, household size, 

months, tier, tier amount., case number (to which the Retroactive Relief was authorized), and 

amount of such Retroactive Relief. 

27. For all Class Members who do not have an Open Case: 

a. Defendants shall conduct a review of the applicable computer records on the 90th 

day after the Operl Case Payment De.te and every 90 days thereafter (each a 
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''Closed Case Sweep Date"), for a period ofrwo (2) years from the Open Case 

Payment Date, to identify whether these Class Members are active as a member of 

a PA household on the Closed Case Sweep Date, and, if so, for each such Class 

Member, Defendants shall, withitt ten ( 10) business days after the Closed Case 

Sweep Date, authorize the Retroactive ReLief set forth in Section IV by issuing the 

appropriate amount to the EBT card of the payee of the Class Member's PA case 

at the time of the Sanction if such case is active as of the Closed Case Sweep 

Date, otherwise to the payee of the Class Member's new PA case. 

b. Within ten (10) business days prior to or following the Defendants authorizing 

Retroactive ReliefpurS!lant to Paragraph 27(a), above, Defendants shall issue a 

written notice to the payee of the Class Member's PA case at the time of the 

relevant Sanction if such case is active on the Closed Sweep Date; otherwise, to 

the payee of the Class Member's PA case as of the Closed Sweep Date. A sample 

of such a notice is attached as Exhibit A hereto. 

28. Within fourteen (14) days of each Closed Case Sweep Dat~, Defendants shall 

provide to Class Counsel, a report in writing that sets forth any Retroactive Relief authoriz~d on 

behalf of a Class Member pursuant to Section JV herein, including the name, address, Client · 

Identification Number, sanction code, household siz.e, months, tier, tier amount, case number (to 

which the Retroactive Relief was authorized), and amount of such Retroactive Relief pursuant to 

Paragraph 27 above (a "Closed Case Sweep Date Report''). 

SECTION JV: CALC:W..ATION OF RETROACTIVE RELIEF 

29. Defend.ants will authorize Retroactive Relief on behalf of each Class Member 

who has an Open Case and who received a Local Form Equivalent Notice of Conciliation that 

10 
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did not reflect revisions made to that notice on or after December 6) 2010, and who attended 

Conciliation, and who had a durational Sanction imposed which was not thereafter Remedied by 

reason of agency action, litigation, or administrative relief, as follows: 

a. For each Class Member who had a minimum 90 day durational Sanction imposed, 

the Retroactive Relief amount is equal to the appropriate St.andardized Monthly 

Lost Benefit indicated in Tier 1 of the schedule above depending upon the size of 

the PA household at the time that such Sanction was imposed multiplied by three, 

b. For each Class Member who had a minimwn 150 day durational Sanction 

imposed, the Retroactive Relief amount is equal to the appropriate Standardized 

Monthly Lost Benefit indicated in Tier 1 of the schedule above depending upon 

the size of the PA household at the time that such SanctioJJ was imposed 

multiplied by five. 

c. For each Class Member who had a minimum 180 day durational Sanction 

imposed, the Retroactive Relief amount is equal to the appropriate Standardized 

Monthly Lost Benefit indicated ln Tier l of the schedule a.hove depending upon 

the size of the PA household at the time that such Sanction was imposed 

multiplied by six. 

30. Defendants will authorize Retroactive Relief on behalf of each CJags Member 

who has an Open Case and who received a Local Fonn Equivalent Notice of Conciliation that 

did not reflect revisions made to that notice on or after December 6, 20 I 0, and who did not 

attend Conciliation, and who had a durational Sanction imposed which was not thereafter 

Remedied by tea.son of agency action, litigation, or administrative relief, as follows; 
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a. For each Class Member who had a minimum 90 day durational Sanction imposed, 

the Retroactive Relief wnount is equal to the appropriate Standardized Monthly 

Lost Benefit indicated in Tier 2 of the schedule above depending upon the size of 

the PA household at the time that such Sanction was imposed multiplied by three. 

b. For each Class Member who had a minimum 150 day durational Sanction 

imposed, the Retroactive Relief amount is equal to the appropriate Standardized 

' Monthly Lost Benefit indicated in Tier 2 of the schedule above depending upon 

the size of the PA household at the time that such Sanction was imposed 

multiplied by five, 

c. For each Class Member who had a minimllm 180 day durational Sanction 

imposed, the Retr<;>active Relief amount is equal to the appropriate Standardized. 

Monthly Lost Benefit indicated in Tier 2 of the schedule above depending upon 

the size of the PA housebol~ at the time that such Sanction was imposed 

multiplied by six. 

31. Defendants will authorize Retroactive Relief on behalf of each Class Member 

who has an Open Case and who received a Local Form Eq11ivaJent Notice of Conciliation that 

reflected revisions made to that notice on or aftet December 61 2010, and up to December 221 

2015 and who attended Conciliatiqn, and who had a durational Sanction imposed which was not 

thereafter Remedied by reason of agency action, litigation, or administrative relief; as follows: 

a. For each Class Member who had a minimum 90 day durational Sanction imposed, 

the Retroactive Relief amount is equal to the appropriate Standardized Monthly 

Lost Benefit indicated in Tier 3 of the schedule above depending upon the size of 

the PA household at the time that such Sanction was imposed multiplied by three . . 
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b. For each Class Member who had a minimum 150 day durational Sanction 

imposed, the Retroactive Relief amount is equal to the appropriate Standardized 

Monthly tost Benefit indicated in Tier 3" of the schedule above depending upon 

the size of the PA household at the time that such SanctiC>rt was imposed 

multiplied by five. 

c. For each Class Member who had a minimum 180 day durational Sanction 

imposed, the Retroactive Relief amount is equal to the appropriate Standardized 

Monthly Lost Benefit indicated in Tier 3 of the schedule above depending upon 

the size of the: PA household at the time that such Sanction was imposc:d 

multiplied by six., 

32. Defendants will authorize Retroactive Relief on behalf of each Class Member 

who has an Open Case and who received a Local Form Equivalent Notice of Conciliation that 

reflected revisions made to that notice on or after December 6, 2010, and up to December 22, 

2015, and who did not attend ConcHiation, and who had a durational Sanction imposed which 

was not thereafter Remedied by reason of agency action, litigation, or administrative relief, as 

follows: 

a. For each Class Member who had a minimum 90 day durational Sanction imposed, 

the Retroactive Relief amount is equal to the: appropriate Standardized Monthly 

Lost Benefit indicated in Tier 4 of the schedule above depending upon the size of 

the PA household at the time that such Sanction was imposed multiplied by three. 

b. For each Class Member who had a minimum 150 day durational Sanction 

imposed, the Retroactive Relief amount is equal to the appropriate Standardized 

Monthly Lost Benefit indicated in Tier 4 of the schedule above depending upon 
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the size of the PA household at the time that such Sanction was imposed 

multiplied by five. 

c. For eacb Class Member who had a minimum 180 day durational Sanction 

imposed, the Retroactive Relief amount is equal to the appropriate Standardized 

Monthly Lost Benefit indicated in Tier 4 of the schedule above depending upon 

the size of the PA household at the time that such Sanction was imposed 

multiplied by six. 

SECTlON V: NOTICE TO THE CLASS OF._I!!E PROPOSED SETTuEMEN'f 

33. No later than forty-five (45) days prior to the date of any scheduled fairness 

hearing established by the CoUrt, Defendants shall mail to the rrtost curr~nt address known to 

NYC WMS a fairness notice. a sample of which is annexed hereto as Exhibit B (the "Fairness 

Notice"), to individuals listed in the Mailing File, which wilt include: 

a. Class Members who Hre found to be active as part of a household receiving Public 

Assistance on the date that the Mailing F jJe is generated; 

b. Class Members who are found not to be active as part of a household 

receiving Public A:.sistance, bot who are found to either be active for Mi:dical 

Assistance ("MA 11
) or to be active as a pa.rt of a household receiving . · 

Supplemental Nutritional Assistance Program (4'SNAP'1
) bene~ts on the date that 

the Mailing File is generated; and 

c. Class Members who are not found to be active as part of a household 

receiving Public Assistance or SNAP benefits nor active for MA, but who were 

active: as part of a household receiving Public Assist.ance ot SNAP benefits or 
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who were active for MA at some pofot within the 90 days prior to the date on 

which the Mailing File is generated. 

34. No later than forty-five ( 45) days prior to the date of any scheduled fairness 

hearing esr.a.blished by the Court: 

a. Plaintiffs will ca.use the Fairness Notice to be posted (i) on the website for The 

Legal Aid Society of New York, and (ii) in the waiting rooms or reception areas 

of each main borough office of the Civil Practice of The Legal Aid Society of 

New York, as well as The Legal Aid Society's centra] office. 

b. State Defendant will cause the Fa.jmess Notice to be posted (i) on its website, and 

(ii) in the first floor reception area and in the waiting area near the car fare 

windows on each hearing floor at OTDA's Office of Administrative Hearings 

located at 14 Boerum Place, First Floor, Brooklyn, New York 11201. 

c, City Defendant will cause the Fairness Notice to be posted (i) on its website, and 

(ii) in the waiting rooms or main reception areas of NYC HR.A's Family 

Independence Administration Job Cente~-

SECTION VI: RELEASE AN!) WIDl))RA WAL OF CLAIM~ APP:EALS 

35. Within ten (10) business days following the Effective Date, Defendants shall take 

all necessary steps to withdraw any and all appeals in this Action pending before the New York 

State Supreme Court, Appellate Division, First Department. 

36. As of the Effective Date, any and all claims asserted by the Named Plaintiffs, on 

their own behalf and on behalf of the C1ass Members, in the Second Amended Complaint herein 

are dismissed with prejudice. 
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37. The claims raised or that could have been raised based upon the facts alleged in 

the Second Amended Complaint are dismissed with prejudice, including but not limited to: (1) 

claims that any version of the Local form Equivalc:nt Notice of ConcHiation as used by the City 

Defendant frorn 1uly 8, 2007 until the Effective Date are inadequate, insufficient or violate 

Social Services Law§ 341(1)(a) and/or the Due Process Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to 

the U.S. Constitution because the version of the Notice of Conciliation allegedly failed to state in 

plain language the specific instance or instances (i) of willful refusal to comply without good 

cause with the Employment Requirements, (ii) the necessary actions that must be taken to avoid 

a prO•rata reduction. in Benefits, (iii) informadon on what would constitute good cause for non

compliance, and/or (iv) examples of acceptable forms of evidence that may warrant exemption 

from Employment Requirements, including evidence of domestic violence and physical or 

mental health limitations that may be provided at ConcHiation to demonstrate good cause for 

failure to comply with the Employment Requirements, and; (2) claims that the State's Sanction 

Notices as used by the City Defendant from July 8, 2007 until the Effective Date are inadequate, 

irtsufficient or violate Social Services Law § 22, Social Services Law § 341 (1 )(b), 18 N.Y.C.R.R. 

§ 358-2.2, 7 U.S.C. § 2015, 7 C.F.R. §§ 273.7 and 273.13, and/or the Due Process Clause of the 

Fourteenth Amendment because the Sanction Notices allegedly failed to state in plain language 

the specific instance or inst.ances (i) of wiJlful refusal or failure to comply without good cause 

with the Employment Requirements, (ii) the necessary actions that must be taken to avoid a pro

rata reduction in Public Assistance Benefits, and/or (iii) the reason that the refusal or failure to 

comply was determined to be willful and without good cause. Provided however that the 

dismissal of claims pursuant to this Paragraph is without prejudice as to all claims that were 

raised or that could have been raised based upon the facts alleged in the Second Amended 
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Complaint with respect to (:onciliation Notices and/or Sanction Notices issued on or after 

December 22, 2015. 

38. As of the Effective Date, the remedies enforceable in this Action are limited to the 

provisions of this Stipulation. 

39. As of the Effective Date, Named Plaintiffs, individually and on behalf of each 

Class Mem~r, and on behalf of the respective heirs, executors, administrators, personal 

representatives, successors, and assigns of each of themselves and each Class Meµiber, hereby 

jointly and s~verally release and forever discharge, on the merits with prejodice, (a) City 

Defendant, its past and present officials, ~mployees, departmeJ'lts, agencies, representatives1 

directors, commissioners and agents, their successors and assigns, and their respective heirs, 

executors, administrators, personal representatives, and transferees, and (b) State Defendant, its 

past and present officials, employees, departmentsi agencies, representatives, directors, and 

agents, their successors and assigns, and thefr respective heirs, executors. administrators, 

personal representatives, and transferees (collective]y the "Releasees,,) and each of them, of and 

from any and all claims, whether known or unknown, foreseen ~r unforese0n, matured or un

matured, accrued or not accrue~ direct or indirect, from the beginning of tim~ through the 

Effective Date that the Named Plaintiffs and the Class Members and each of them, ever had, now 

has or have, or can, sh~ll or may hereafter have against the Releasees or any of them, with 

respect to any claims raised or that could have been raised based upon the facts alleged in the 

Second Amended Complain~ including but not limited to (i) any claim that any version of the 

Local Form Equivalent Notice of Conciliation as used by the City Defendant from July 8, 2007 

until the Effective Date was inadequate, insufficient 01 violated Socia] Services Law§ 34.1 (l)(a) 

-and/or the Due Process Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution because 
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the Notice of Conciliation allegedly failed to state in plain language the specific instance or 

instances (A) of willful refusal to comply without good cause with the Employment 

Requirements, (B) the necessary actions that must be ts.ken to avoid e. pro-rata reduction in 

Benefits, (C) information on what would constitute good cause for non-compliance, and/or (D) 

examples of acceptable forms of evidence that may warrant exemption from Employment 

Requirements including evidence of domestic violence, and physical or mental health limitations 

that may be provided at Conciliation to demonstrate such good cause for failure to comply with 

the Employment Requirements, and; (ii) that the State's Sanction Notices as used by the City 

Defendant from July 8, 2007 until the Effective Da~ are inadequate, insufficient or violate 

Social Services Law § 22, Socia} Services Law § 341(1)(b), 18 N.Y.C.R.R. § 358-2.2; 7 U.S.C. 

§ 2015, 7 C.F.R. §§ 273.7 and 273.13, and/or the Due Process Clause of the Fourteenth 

Amendment because the Sanction Notice allegedly failed to state in plain language the specific 

instance or instances (A) ofwi1lfu1 refusal or failure to comply without good cause with the 

Employment Requirements, (B) the necessary actions that must be taken to avoid a pro-rata 

reduction in Benefits and/or (C) the reason that the refusal or failW"e to comply was detennined 

to be willful and without good cause. Provided however that said release shall not be construed 

so as to preclude any person or group of persons from raising claims that were raised or that 

could have been raised based upon the facts alleged in the Second Amended Complaint with 

respect to ConcHiation Notices md/or Sanction Notices issued by Defendants on or after 

December 22, 2015. 

40. No provision in this Stipulation shall infringe upon or restrict any Class Member's 

ability to obtain individual 'relief through an administrative hearing or a judicial proceeding, 

including but not limited to a proceeding brought pursuant to CPLR Article 78, so Jong as the 
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Class Member is not seeking to challenge the forrn, or sufficiency of a Sanction Notice or any 

version of the Local Form Equivalent Notice of Conciliation that was revised prior to the 

Effective De.te, on 8:fJY of~c growids raised in the Second Amended Complaint. 

S:E..f;TION VII: PAYMENT OF ATTORNEYS,: FEES TO CLASS COU"NS~L 

Pavments on Behalf of State Defendant 

41. The State of New York, on behalf of OTDA, agrees to pay the gross sum of 

$300,950.00, for which 1.R.S. Fonn 1099s shall be issued, to Class Counsel in fulJ satisfaction of 

any and all claimst allegations or causes of action for attorney's fees, costs, disbursements and 

expens~s incurred in or arising from this Action (the "State Fee Payments") as foJlows: 

Organization 

The Legal Aid Society 
199 Water Street, 3rd Floor 
New York, New York 10038 

Kramer Levin Naftalis & Frankel LLP 
1177 Avenue of the Americas 
NewYork, New York 10036 

Amount 

$200,950.00 

$100,000.00 

42. The State Fee Payments are subject to the approval of all appropriate officials of 

the State of New York in e.ccordance with N.Y. Pub, Off. Law§ 17. Class Counsel agrees to 

execute and deliver all necessary or appropriate vouchers and other requested documentation 

with respect to obtaining such approval and effectuating payment. In the event such approval is 

not obtained, then the portions of this Stipulation and Order that pertain to the payment of 

attorney's fees, costs, disbursements and expenses on behalf of State Defendant shall be null, 

void, and of no further force and effect, and the Class shall have the right to move for said 

attorney's fees, costs, disbursements and oxpenses. If approval is denied, State Defendant's 

counsel shall notify Class Counsel in writing within ten (10) business days of the denial, and 
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Class Counsel shall have ninety (90) days from such notice within which to make a motion 

seeking payment of reasonable attorney's fees, costs, disbursements and expenses from the St.ate 

Defendant. 

43. The State Fee Payments shaJl be made in accordance with the provisions ofCPLR 

§ 5003-a(c) after receipt b)'. State Defendant's counsel of a copy of this Stipulation and Order, 

that has become final and unappealable as defined in Paragraph 7, together with all other 

documentation required under Paragraph 42, and shall be made by checks issued to the 

appropriate entities, at the addresses specified in Paragraph 41 of this Stipulation and Order. 

Interest shall accrue on the amounts payable to Class Counsel pursuant to Paragraph 41 at the 

rate set forth in CPLR § 5004 beginning on the ninety.first (91st) day after the State Comptroller 

has, in accordance with CPLR § 5003-a(c), determined that all documents and infonnation 

required to effectuate the State Fee Payments have been received by him. 

44. Nruned Plaintiffs, Class Members and Class Counsel agree that any taxes, or 

interest or penalties on taxes, on the State Fee Payments shall be the sole and complete 

responsibility ofClass ·counsel, and that Class Counsel shall have no claim, right or cause of 

action against the State Defendant, the State of New York (including, but not limited to, aQY and 

all agencies, departments, and subdivisions thereof), or wiy of their officials, employees, or 

agents, whether in their individual or official capacities, on account of any and all such taxes, 

interest or penalties. 

45, Named Plaintiffs, Class MemberS and Class Counsel agree that neither the State 

Defendant, the State of New York (including, but not limited to, any and all agencies, 

departments, and subdivisions thereof), nor any of their officials, employees, or agents, whether 

in their individual or offic_ial capacities, shall be responsible for any liens of any kind (~ncluding, 
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but not limited to, any and all workers' compensation, tax, or child support liens) which may 

attach to the State Fee Payments. Named Plaintiffs, Class Members and Class Counse'I shall 

have no claim, right, or cause of action against the State Defendant, the State of New York 

(including, but not limited to, any and all agenciesi departments, and subdivisions thereof), or 

any of their officials, employees, or agents, whether in their individual or official capacities, on 

account of any and all such liens. 

46. In consideration of the State Fee Payments and other good and valuable 

consideration, Named Plaintiffs, Class Members, and Class Counsel, on their own behalf and on 

behalf of the respective heirs, executors, administrators, personal representatives, successors, and 

assigns of each of themselves and on behalf of any future Class Members (collectively, the 

''Releasing Parties"), hereby jointly and severally release the State Defendant, the StAte of New 

York, and any present or former employees, agents, officials, departments, agenc,es, 

representatives, and directors, their successors and assigns and their respective heirs, executors, 

administrators, pers~nal representatives, and transferees, and each of them (collectively, the 

'
1Relee.sed State Parties"), from any and all liability, claims, or rights of action for attorneys' 

fees, costs, disbursements and expenses in or arising from this Action that the Named PlaintifTu, 

Class Members, or Class Counsel had, have, or may in the future have related to the claims in 

this Action or arising from any activities of Class Counsel in connection with the Action or this 

Stipulation, and this Stipulation and Order shalJ be deemed a release to that effect. This 

limitation shall not apply to work done solely on a successful enforcement motion under Section 

VIII of this Stipulation provided that Class Counse1 have complied, as a condition precedent to 

such a motion, with the requirements of Section VIII of this Stipulation. 
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47, The undersigned attorneys for Plaintiffs further represent that to the best of their 

knowledge there are no other attorneys having a lien for services rendered to Plaintiffs pursuant 

to the provisions of Section 475 of the New York Judiciary Law or otherwise in this Action, or in 

any other action or proceeding alleging any of the acts, transactions, occurrences. or omissions 

asserted in this Action. 

48. Nothing contained in this Stipulation and Order shall be deemed to be an 

agreement or an admission by the State Defendant as to the reasonableness of the number of 

hours spent or the particular hourly rates claimed by Class Counsel, or the entitlement ofNruned 

Plaintiffs, Class Members or Class Counsel to any attorney's fees, costs1 disbursements or 

expenses in connection with this Action, and the State Defendant does not waive any defenses to 

any and all future application by Named Plaintiffs, Class Members or Class Counsel therefor. 

!!avme.nt.s on Behalf of City D efendant 

49. The City of New York agrees to pay the gross swn of $300,950.00, for which 

I.R.S. Form 1099s shall be issued, to Class Counsel in full satisfaction of any and all claims, 

allegations or causes of action for attorney's fees, costs, disbursements and expenses incurred in 

or arising from this Action .(the "City Fee Payments") as follows: 

Organization 
The Legal Aid Society 
199 Water Street, 3rd Floor 
New York, New York 10038 

Kramer Levin NeftaJis & Frankel LLP 
1177 Avenue of the Americas 
New York, New York 10036 

Amount 
$200,950.00 

$100,000.00 

50. Class Counsel agrees to execute and deliver all necessary or appropriate 

documentation with respect to effectuating payment, which shall include releases from Class 

Counsel, The Legal Aid Society and Kramer Levin Naftalis & Frankel LLP, based on the terms 
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of Paragraph 54 below, together with the tax identification number and substitute W-9' forms for 

Class Counsel. Payment of the amount described in Paragraph 49 is conditioned upon delivery 

of these documents to City Defendant's counsel. 

S 1. The City Fee Payments shall be made in 0.ccordancc with the provisions of CPLR 

§ 5003-a(b) after receipt by City Comptroller of a "so-ordered" copy ofthjg Stipulation and 

Order that has become final and unappealable as defined in Paragraph 7, together with aJJ other 

documentation requited under Paragraph 50, and shall be made by checks issued to the 

appropriate entities, at the addresses specified in Paragraph 49 of this Stipulation Bnd Order. 

Service of a "so ordered" copy of this Stipulation and Order on the Corporation Counsel of the 

City of New York shall be deemed good and sufficiont s~ice under this paragraph, lnterest 

shall accrUe on the amounts payable to Class Counsel pursuant to Paragraph 49 at the rate set 

forth in CPLR § 5004 beginnin,g on the _ninety-first (91 st) day after the City Comptroller has, in 

accordance with CPLR § 5003-a(b), received all documents and information required to 

effectuate the City Fee Payments. 

52. Named Plaintiffs, Class Membero and Class Counsel agree that any taxes, or 

interest or penaJties on taxes, on the City Fee Payments shall be the sole and complete 

responsibility of Class Counsel, and that Class Counsel shall have no cJaim, right or cause: of 

action against the City Defendant, the City of New York (including, but not limited ta, any and 

all agencies, departments, and subdivisions thereof), or any of their officials, empJoyees1 or 

agents, whether in their individual or official capacities, on account of any and all such taxes, 

interest or penalties, 

53. Named Plaintiffs, Class Members and Class Co1.1nseJ agree that neither the City 

Defendant, the City of New York (including, but not limited to, any and all agencies, 
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departments, and subdivisions thereof), nor any of their officials, employees, or agents, whether 

in their individual or official capacities, shall be responsible for any liens of any kind (including, 

but not limited to, any and all workers' compensatiort, t.ax, ar child support liens) which may 

attach to the City Fee Payments. Named Plaintiffs, Class Members and Class Cowisel shall have 

no claim, right, or cause of action against the City Defendant, the City of New York (including, 

but not limited to, any and all agencies, departments, and subdivisions thereof), or any of their 

officials, employees1 or agents, whether in their individ\1131 or official capacities, on account of 

any and all such liens. 

54. In consideration of the City Fi:ie Payments and other good and valuable 

consideration1 Named Plaintiff9, Class Members, and Class Counsel, on their own behalf and ort 

behalf of the respective heirs, executors, administrators, personal representatives, successors, and 

assigns of each of themselves and on behalf of any future Class Members (collectively, the 

"Releasing Parties"), hereby jointly and severally release the City Defendant, the City of New 

York, and any present or fom.1er employees, agents, officials, departments, agencies, 

representatives, and directors, their successorS and assigns and their respective heirs, ~xecutors, 

administrators, personal representatives, and transferees, and each of them (collectively1 the 

''R~leased City Parties"), from any and all liability, claims, or rights of action for attorneys I fees, 

costs, disbursements and expenses in or arising from this Action, that the Named Plaintiffs, Class 

Members, or Class Counsel had, have, or may in the future have related to the claims in this 

Action or arising from any activities of Class Counsel in connection -with the Action or this 

Stipulation, and this Stipulation and Order sha11 be deemed a release to that effect. This 

limitation shall not apply to work done solely on a successful enforcement motion under Section 
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VIII of this Stipulation provided that Class Counsel have compljed, as a condition precedent to 

sucn a motion, with the requirements of Section VIII of this Stipulation. 
/ 

55. The undersignod attorneys for Plaintiffs further represent that to the best of their 

knowledge there are no other attorneys having a lien for services rendered to Plaintiffs pursuant 

to the provisions of Section 475 of the New York Judiciary Law or otherwise in this Action, or in 

any other action or proceeding alleging any of the acts, transactions, occurrences, or omissions 

asserted In this Action. 

56. Nothing contained in this Stipulation and Order shall be deemed to be an 

agrec.mcnt or an admission by the City Defendant as to the reasonabkness of the number of 

hours spent or the particular hourly rates claimed by Class Counsel, or the entitlement of Named 

PJaintiffs, Class Members or Class Counsel to any attorney's fees, costs, disbursements or 

expenses in connection with this Action, and the City Defendant does not waive any ~efenses to 

any and al1 future application by Ne.med Plaintiffs, Class Members or Class Counsel therefor. 

SECTlON VIII: CONTINQING JURISDICTION 

57. As of the Effective Date, tho jurisdiction of this Court shall terminate for all 

purposes except that the Court shall maintain continuing jurisdiction over this Action for tht 

purpose of enforcing the terms of this StipuJation, subject to Paragraphs 581 59, 60, and 6 I of this 

Stipulation. 

58. The jurisdiction of this Court shall tenninate at the conclusion of thirty (30) days 

after Defendants provide to Class Counsel a final Closed Case Sweep Date Report pursuant to 

the terms set forth in Paragraph 28, except that if Plaintiffs move pursuant to Paragraphs 59 or 60 

to enforce the terms of this Stipulation, jurisdiction shall continue until: (a) such motion is 
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decided; (b) such time as directed by the Court, if the motion is decided favorably for Plaintiffs; 

or (c) such time as may be extended by the parties by modification ofthjs Stipulation. 

59. During the time prior to the termination of the Court's jurisdiction pursuant to the 

ternis set forth in Paragraph 58, if Class Counsel believes that one or m.ore Defendants have 

failed to comply with the tenns of this Stipulation, Class Counsel shall notify all Defe~dants' 

counsel in writing of the nature and specifics of the alleged failure to comply at least thirty (30) 

· days before any motion is made for enforcement of this Stipulation or for contempt against the 

noncompliant Defendant. Unless otherwise resolved, the partiesi counsel shall meet within the 

30-day period following notice to Defendants' counsel in a.n attempt to arrive at a resolution of 

the claims. If no resolution is reached within thirty (30) days from tho date of notice, Named 

Plaintiffs may move this Court for an order for all appropriate relief against the noncompliant 

Defendant. 

60. During the twenty~four (24) m9nths following the Effective Date, if Class 

Counsel disagrees with Defendants' determination of whether an individual is a Class Member 

under Paragraph 23 of this Stipulation or whether a Class Member has been afforded the correct 

reliofunder Paragraphs 24, 25, or 27 of this Stipulation, Class Cowisel shall notify Defendants' 

counsel in writing of the nature and specifics of tho disagreement. Defendants' counsel will 

respond to any such communication within seven (7) business days, If Defendants agree that a 
. . . 

Class Member has not received full relief 1.111der this Stipulation, they shall issue Retroactive 

Relief to such Class Member within ten (I 0) business days ·of such determination. If Defendants 

advise Class Counsel that they believe an individual identified by Class Counsel purs\Jant to this 

Pe.tagraph is not a Class Memb~r or has received all Ri:troactive Relief to which he or she is 

eligible under this Stipulation, Defendants' response shall include the specific basis for their 
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conclusion. If Defendants fail to respond to a notification from Class Counsel pursuant to this 

Para.graph within thirty (30) days, or if, after Defendants respond to Class Counsel's notification, 

there remains a dispute as to whether an individual is a Class Member under Paragraph 23 of this 

Stipulation or the whether a Class Member has been afforded the correct relief under Paragraphs 

24, 25, or 27 of this Stipulation, Named Plaintiffs may move this Court for an order resolving 

such dispute. 

61. Notwithstanding the provisions of Paragraph 59, Named Plaintiffs may move this 

Court for an order for all appropriate relief against a noncompliant DefendE1I1t without waiting 

thirty (30) days if Named Plaintiffs' motion is based in whole or in part on information received 

by Class Counsel less than thirty (30) days before the date: that the jurisdiction of this Court is 

due to lapse pursuant to Paragraph 58 of this Stipulation. 

SEC]JON IX: GENERAL PROVISIONS 

62. If the Court disapproves the Stipu]ation or any material part thereof, or if the 

Stipulation is modified or reversed in any material respect by an order or decision that is fmal 

and una.ppealable, then this Stipulation shall be canceled and deemed nuII and void, and the 

parties shall revert to their respective positions in the Action as of the date prior to their signing 

this Stipulation. 

63. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to be an admission by the Defendants 

or any officer or employee thereof, of any of Named Plaintiffs' or Class Members' allegations or 

of Named Plaintiffs' or Class Members' standing to putsue any relief, nor an admission by the 

Defendants that they have in any manner or way violated a Named Plaintiffs' or a Class 

Members' rights, or the rights of an)' other person or entity, as defined in the constitutions, 

statutes, ordinances, rules, or regulations of the United States, thi: State of New York, or the City 
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of New York or any other rules~ regulations, or bylaws of any department, agency~ or subdivision 

of the State of New York or the City ofNew York, including but not limited to OIDA and/or 

HRA. 

64. This Stipulation constitutes the parties' entire agreement with respect. to the 

matters set forth in this Stipulation, and no oral agreement entered into at any time nor any 

written agreement entered into prior to the execution of this Stipulation regarding the subject 

matter of the instant Action shall. be deemed to exist, or to bind the parties hereto, or to vary the 

terms and conditions contai~ed herein. 

65. This Stipulation shall not be admissible in any other litigation or settlement 

negotiation, except for enforcement of the provisions contained herein as set forth in Section 

VIII of this Stipulation. 

66. Nothing contained in this Stipulation shall be deemed to constitute a policy or 

practice of the Defendants, including OTDA and HRA. 

67. All parties to this Stipulation have participated in its drafting; consequently, any 

ambiguity shall not be construed for or against any party. 

68. The construction, interpretation, operation, effect and validity of this Stipulation, 

and a.II documents necessary to effectuate it shall be governed by the laws of the Statc·ofNcw 

York without regard to conflicts oflaw, except to the extent that federal law may govern, 

69. In computing any time period specified by this Stipulation, the following rules 

apply: (i) exclude the day of the event that triggers the period; (ii) count every day, including 

intermediate Saturdays, Sundays, and New York State or New York City legal holidays; and (iii) 

include the last day of the p~iod, but if the last day is a Saturday, Sunday, or New York State or 
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New York City legal holiday, the period continues to run until the end of the next day that is not 

a Saturday, Sunday, or such legal holiday. 

70. This Stipulation is final and binding upon the parties, their successors, and their 

assigns. 

71. Any notice, report, or communication required by or made pursuant to the terms 

of this Stipulation, other than notices sent to individual Class Members, shall be sent by 

electronic mail and, upon request, by first class mail, postage prepaid, to all of the people below: 

To Plaintiffs: Lester Helfinan 
lohelfrnan@legal•aid.org 
The Legal Aid Society 
111 Livingston Street - 7th Floor 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 

Susan Jacquemot 
sjacquemot@kramerJevin.com 
Kramer Levin Naftalis & Frankel 
11 77 A venu~ of the Americas· 
New York, New York 10036 

To City Defendant: Thomas B. Roberts 
throbert@law,nyc.gov 
Assistant Corporation Counsel 
New York City Law Department 
100 Church Street, Room 2-110 
New York, New York 10007 

To State Defendant: Roderick L. Arz 
Roderick.Arz@ag.ny.gov 
Assistant Attorney General 
New York State Office of the Attorney General 
28 Liberty Street 
New York, New York 10005 

72. Any party may change the above-designated addressee or address by written 

notice to the other parties. A copy of such notice shall be filed with the Clerk of the Court. 
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73. This Stipulation may be executed in one or more c(nmte:rparts, including by 

signature transmitted by .pdfi',tif image of'the signature transmitted via email. All executed 

countorparts and each of them shall be deemed to be one and the same instrument. 
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. ···· · .. .... . 

Dated: New York, New York 
f:JJl_v,• i , 2018 

THE LEOALAJD SOCIETY 
Auomey.r for Jllal'lui./ft 

Dated: N~ York, New Yotk 
..,.,, 21 .2012 

' j fi < . 

BARBARA D. UNDERWOOD 
Attorney Ocnornl of the Stale of Now York 
Allom ot' .~,al~ efendr:rnr · 

By-; Roderick 
Assistant Attomey 
28 Liberty S.tl'l!)et 
N~w York, l-!¢w York 100-05 

Dated: New York, New York 
_ t,/2v. j • 2018 . 

KRAMER LEVIN NAFTALIS &. FRANKEL 
Attorneysfor Plainr{!Js 

-"P' ,. ' ~ H , ...'.. ~f_.:., 

,~~iia~~~ --
1 I n A ven uc of the Amorica5 
N~w York, New York 1003'6 

ZACHARY W. CARTER 
Corpero.iion Counsel for the City of New York 
A rtorney fgr the City of Ne:w York 

" . ;' 4_.,,,_ . . . -•-. __ .. . _£::) /~"!l:y.~. !""i ;-.:--........ ____ ....,., __ 
~ , .. ,. -. ,. 

By: 11iomas B. Roberts _ 
A.ssistan\ Corporation Counsel · 
Nr:w York City UIW Department 
I 00 Church Street 
New-York, New York ·)0007 

(THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK) 
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D~W2C1C ORC:CR PAI\" '6 o~o ~g WITl-1 ~TIPUU\i/ON ANO ORCER OF SETTLEMENTCAT~O ~(ol,g 

Dated: Albany, Ni:w York 
11/ovwtec I~ , 2018 

TI-IE NEW YORK STATE OFFICE OF 
TEMPORARY AND DISABILITY 
ASSISTANCE 

~jb~:c. £in~~ 
Executive Deputy Commissioner 
40 North Pearl Street 
Albany, New York 12243 

SO ORDERED, 

this 'J,,u 1M day of ~ -~-~-

Honorable Lucy Billings 
Justice of the Supreme CoUrt 

32 

FILED: NEW YORK COUNTY CLERK 10/13/2021 04:15 PM INDEX NO. 400903/2010

NYSCEF DOC. NO. 15 RECEIVED NYSCEF: 10/13/2021



E_mmITA 

SAMPLE 

INFORMATION ABOUT SPECIAL j
4$MITH SETTLEMENT" PAYMENT 

Due to a settlement In the lawsuit Smith, et. el. v, Proud, et al,. Sup. Cl. N.Y. County No. 400903/2010, 
(1) a special payment described below wlH be made through the Electronic B@nefit Transfer (EBD card 
for your household; and (2) the New Yori< Stat1;:- Office of Temporary ancl Dlsablllty Assistanc@ (OTIJA) rs 
adjusting, or has adjusted, the sanction history for each household member that was affected by the 
circumstances of !he lawsuit. 

The lawsuit alleged that two notlees - the 'Conciliation Notice" and the "Notice of Decision• (also called 
the "Notice of Intent to Change Benefits") - that you, or someone in your household, received prior to 
sanctioning did not comply with New York Social Services Law§ 341(1)(a)-(b). The Smith settlement 
concerns all such notices that were sent to you, or someone in your household, between July 8, 2007 and 
December 22, 2015, 

New York City Human Resource Administration (HRA)'s records show that you, or someone In your 
household, received one or more of these notices prior to being .sanctionsd for failing o, refusing to 
comply with a ~ubllc assistance work requirement. Ag a resull, your household Is receiving this special. 
payment. 

The special payment is based on the followlng factorn: 

• What form of the Notrce of Conciliation you, or someone In your household, received (i.e. the 
relevant Tier); 

• Whether the sanctions against you, ore household membf,r, were for a first, l:ll!!lcond, or third 
violation; 

• The minimum durational time for each relevant sanction; 

• V\/he~er you or the sanctioned member of your household attended your/his/her conclllatJon 
api:,ointment; and 

• The size of the relevant individual's household at the time of each sanction. 

Further, pursuant to the~ settlement. OTDA has adjusted, or will adjust, the sanction history for each 
affected member of your household by reducing your/his/her cumulative sanction count by the number of 
relevant Public Assistance (PA) employment sanctions Imposed from July 8, 2007 to December 22, 2015. 

Pogo :;'I ot J 
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The speclal payment hes, or wlll be made, a!'I follows: 

Payment of S191,Z6 This was based on Uie monthly amount of $63.75 X (3 month senetkm duG1tlon), 
for a relevant I1!t1 PA employment sanction. · · 

Payment of $382.50 lhis_was based on the monthly amount of$~ X (6 month s.~nction duration), 
for a relevant Tier 1 PA emi:,loyment sanction. 

Payment of S~ This was based on the monthly amount of$~ x (G month apnctton duration), 
for a relevant Tier 3 PA employment sanction. 

Total payment $731,25 

This/these amount(s) was/were calculated by taking the appropriate amount shown In the chart below 
multiplied by the minimum required duration of each sanction, 

PA Household Iiill TuL1 ~ Iifil 
Size HRA sent a HRA sent a HRA sent a HRA sent a 

Conciliation Notice Concillation Notice Conciliation Concllfatlon Notice 
form before form before Notice form form revised on or 
12/6/1 o and you 12/6/10 and you revised on or after after 1216110 and 
attended did not enend 12/6/10 and you you did not attend 
conciliation conciliation ettended conciliation 

concllletlon 
1 $117.00 $93.75 $41.25 $33.75 
2-5 $63.75 $51.75 $33.75 $26.25 
6-6 $48.75 $39.00 $26.25 $18.75 
9 and over $43.$0 $33.00 $18.75 $11.25 

lMPORTANT 

You must access this money within 90 days from the date on this notice - or else it won't be available 
anymore. If you access other money In your EBi account In those 90 days, then you will have more 
time to use your Smith special payment - 180 days from the date on this notice. · 

Questions';' 

If you haYe a question about the special payment or how the sanction history for members In ycur 
household was changed , you can call Class Counsel et (XXX) XXX•XXXX and say you have a question 
about your §m.ill} notice. 
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EXHIBITB 

NOTICE OF PROPOSED SETTLEMENT OF CLASS ACTION 
CONCERNING S~CTIONS IMPOSED ON 

CASH ASSIST ANC£ REClPlENTS IN NEW YORK CITY 

Are you a New York City resident whose household, from July 8, 2007 to December 22, 2015, 
had its Publjc Assistance (PA) benefits reduced o~ stopped by the New York City Human 
Resources Administration (HRA) because you did not comply with work rules? If so, you 
should read this notice, which provides infonnation about the settlement of a lawsuit involving 
the alleged failure ofHRA to issue a proper Notice of Conciliation and/or Notice of Intent to 
Change Benefits. 

Background 

Lawyers for PA recipients filed this lawsuit in 2010 against HR.A and the New York State Office 
of Temporary and Disability Assistance (OTDA). The lawsuit alleges that two notices -
"Conciliation Notice" and "Notice of Decision>> (also referred to as Notice of Intent to Change 
Benefits) -that PA recipients received from July 8, 2007 through December 22, 2015, did not 
comply with New York Social Services Law§ 34l(l)(a)-(b). These notices were sentto PA 
recipients prior to the imposition of a sanction for allegedly violating work requirements. The 
parties have agreed to a settlement of the class action, which must be approved by the Court. 
This notice sets forth the tenns of the proposed settlement and your rights as a potential class 
member. 

What is the Proposed Settlement? 

Yo11 can see the entire proposed settlement at the websjtes for HR.A (http://uyc.gov/hra), 
OTDA (http:l/otda.ny.e;ov), and the Leizal Aid Soch;ty (http://ww.-w.legal-aid.org). The 
lawyers believe that the proposed settlement is fair and in the best interests of the class members. 
Lawyers for the class further beljeve that continuing the court caso would not guarantee a better 
result, and could take a long time. 

The b.asic terms of the settlement ~rej 

• C0rrect Sanctioo Historr: HRA and OTDA will take steps to revise every class 
member's sanction history to reduce the nwnber of public assistance sanctions that 
have not already bcon removed for another reason by the number of work related 
sanctions that were imposed from July 8, 2007 through December 22, 2015. 

• &s19rati9n of PA Bepefjts: BRA and OTDA have agreed to issue a one-time special 
payment of restored PA benefits on behalf of class members who had their PA benefits 
reduced or stopped for allegedly violating work requirements between July 8, 2007 and 
December 22, 2015, and who meet other criteria. 

Will I get a ~pccia1 payment? 
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o If you are currently receiving cash assistance as a part ofa f'A household,' 
a one-time restored PA benefit will be ma.de. This one-time special 
payment will be made to the original household's Electronic Benetit 
Transaction (EBn card whose PA benefit was reduced or discontinued as 
a result of the work sanction. If the original household is not currently PA 
acti.,,e, the payment will be made to the EBT card of the active PA case 
that you a.re cUJTently part of. The cas~ name of that PA household wi11 
get a special mailing telling yon how much the one-time restored PA 
benefit will be. · 

How much will I get? 
o The amount you will receive is based on a. calculation which takes into 

account: the number oftimcs you were sanctioned between July 8, 2007 
and December 22, 2015, your household size; whether there were 
dependent children in the household; the length of the minimum durational 
sanction period; whtthcr tthe conciliation appointment was anended; and 
when the sanction was imposed. 

o For further details regarding how the calculation of the special payments 
will be made, you are encouraged to review a copy of the propose.d 
settlement, which is available in its cnt~ety on the websites for HR.A 
(http://nyc.gov/hra), OTDA (http://otda.ny.gov), and the Legal Aid Society, 
(http://www.legal~aid.org). · 

Do I Have to Do Anything? 

If you agree with the settlement, you do not need to do anyU:iing further. If the Court approves 
the settlement, the original or current PA household as described abovo will receive any restored 
PA benefits that are due automatically. 

Can I Object to the Settlement? 

Class members have the right to object to the proposed settlement as not being fair) re·asonable, 
and adequate by appearing and stating your objection, in person or by counsel. The Court has set 
a bearing for this purpose on ___ 2018 at_: __ ,.m. at the following address: 

Honorable Lucy Billings, Justice of the Supreme Court 
Supreme Court of the State of New York, County of New York 

71 Thomas Street, Room 203 
New York, NY 10013 

C1ass members may also object to the settlement by sending a letter marked "Smith v. Proud, 
Index No. 400903/20 l 0, Class Action Settlement" and post-marked by [XXX] to the Coun at the 
address listed above. 

Class members may contact a.nomey Lester Helfrnan at the Legal Aid Society who has 
represented the plaintiffs in this lawsuit with any questions at (212) [XXX-X:XXX] or via. email 
at [XXXXXX]@legaJ-aid.org. po NOT CALL THE COURT. 

PaQt J7 of ~7 
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